O©CO~NOOITPEA, WN P

BERLIN ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
June 9, 2009, 7:00 PM

This meeting was held at the Berlin Township H2#71 Cheshire Road, Delaware, Ohio
43015.

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Riak&ek at 7:00 PM.
Ms. Kerlin led the meeting attendees in the reoitadf the Pledge of Allegiance.
BZC Members PresenRick Sedlacek; Jerry Valentine; Rae Ann Kerlimy Jahn; Toni

Korleski-second alternate (seated).
BZC Members AbsenkKristin Yorko; Betty Bringardner-first alternate

Mr. Sedlacek read the adopted BZC policy staterfugrthe meeting, as printed in the
agenda.

PROOF OF LEGAL NOTICE PUBLICATION

Zoning Clerk Lisa Knapp provided proof of publicatifor the legal notice for this
meeting, which was published on May 28, 2009 inDe&aware Gazette, providing
notification of the meeting date, time, and itemmsdiscussion.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approval of the May 12, 2009 BZC minutes was dethyastil the next meeting.

LEGAL NOTICE

BERLIN TOWNSHIP ZONING COMMISSION NOTICE OF PUBLIB®IEETING
The Berlin Township Zoning Commission will hold a&eting at 7:00 p.m., Tuesday,
June 9, 2009. The meeting will take place at tediB Township House, 3271 Cheshire
Road, Delaware, OH. The purpose of the meetihg econtinue discussions regarding
the revisions associated with the text of the Caihensive Land Use Plan (CLUP). This
will include the goals and visions as well as hngsconditions, roads and transportation.
Additionally, discussions will continue on possiblganges as a result of the recently
completed Business community Forum. The persqgoresble for giving notice of the
public meeting by publication is Cathy Rippel. ®Gtens concerning this matter should
be directed to the Zoning Office at 740-548-52Tdwnship residents are encouraged to
attend.

Berlin Township Zoning Commission
Rick Sedlacek, Chairman

AGENDA ITEM: INTRODUCTION OF MEETING ATTENDEES

Mr. Sedlacek asked the meeting attendees to intethemselves.

* Tom Thompson, 5380 Summer Boulevard, Galena, O824, in the Meadows of
Cheshire subdivision, also a Berlin Township Boafrdoning Appeals alternate

» Jeff Baumann, 1224 Dale Ford Road, Delaware, Q18615

» Scott Sanders, Executive Director of the Delawarar@y Regional Planning
Commission

» Joe Korleski, BZA member, 3584 Greenville Drivewli® Center, Ohio 43035

* Ron Kimmerling, 2462 Lackey Meadows Drive, Delaw#&aio 43015, in Cheshire
Cove

* Phil Panzarella, 5571 Streamside Drive, Galenap Gt3021

* David Leahy, 1484 Dale Ford Road, Delaware, Oh®1%

* Rick Gemienhardt, 881 Africa Road, Galena, OH 4302

* Elizabeth Cline, 5540 Bayside Ridge, Galena, O#3®21, in Harbor Pointe

Page 1 of 13



60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118

BERLIN ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
June 9, 2009, 7:00 PM

Bill Bechstein, Berlin Township Fire Chief
Toni Korleski, Zoning Commission alternate memi3&84 Greenville Drive, Lewis
Center, OH 43035, in the Shadow Creek subdivision

AGENDA ITEM: STATUS REPORT FROM SUB-COMMITTEES

Mr. Sedlacek asked for a brief summary from the Bd6committees. He thanked the
volunteers on the subcommittees, and noted thpalgeling out these jobs to various
people progress is being made..

EXPANDED HOME OCCUPATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE - UPDATE

Mr. Hahn explained that Ms. Yorko has been worlonghis item due to iliness in Mr.
Hahn’s family, but he is now able to be active anldlbe meeting with Ms. Yorko on
this soon. A document was distributed to the Cassian which included her research
on area townships regarding home-based businaesskgling parking requirements,
deliveries, signs, etc. and this information w#l lised to create a recommendation and
the county prosecutor’s office will be contactedawling this. Mr. Sedlacek said this
subcommittee will have a recommendation at the nmesdting.

VILLAGE OF CHESHIRE BUSINESS COMMUNITY SUB-COMMITTE - UPDATE
Ms. Kerlin said that Tom Thompson has volunteecesktrve on this sub-committee, and
she will be meeting with him and Ms. Cline. Theup should have results to report
soon. Ms. Cline said she researched the City chiale Historic District Overlay and
has highlighted areas which may be appropriat®éslin Township, and she will be
working on this further.

Ms. Kerlin said she has been working on a drafirobppropriate signage code, based on
what has already been written, and a more deteglgolt will be provided at the next
meeting.

SUB-COMMITTEE PROMOTING RESIDENT INPUT IN THE COMHBHENSIVE
LAND USE PLAN (CLUP) REVIEW - UPDATE

Mr. Sedlacek said that Mr. Valentine has coordidaigreading the word about the
CLUP update process including going door-to-dawaking telephone calls, etc. Mr.
Valentine said he ensured that everyone who exguasaserest in getting involved with
this process was contacted, and he called abope@Ble last night. Mr. Sedlacek noted
that the BZC typically does not meet during Jung duly unless there is a rezoning
application; however, not holding meetings duringse months may slow down the
current momentum.

Mr. Sedlacek said that last month, Ms. Cline vada@néd to examine the goals in Chapter
4 of the CLUP, and has provided handouts of theseeigoals for the meeting attendees.
Ms. Cline said that items with brackets indicate tiaxt which she changed, and the rest
of the copy is original text.

Ms. Cline said that she summarized and condengefibrmation, removed the tables
and numbers, and also the rankings which had bedudied, and stated in the text that
the information which was deleted can be referemeddll in the appendices. The points
which were addressed were summarized and bull&tews work was done in an attempt
to make the information flow and be easier to re@te said that she summarized a lot of
information and put ideas together in no particolater, which she stated in the text.

Mr. Hahn said that the document was impressivevangleasy to read. He said that the
first bullet on the last page could possibly sthtg zoning should be utilized to make
annexation less attractive than remaining in Bérbmvnship, rather than preventing
annexation. Mr. Valentine suggested the word ‘@lisaged” as annexation cannot be
prevented. He noted that the final draft of the ®@LWill be reviewed by the county
prosecutor’s office.

Page 2 of 13



119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178

BERLIN ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
June 9, 2009, 7:00 PM

Mr. Valentine said that the first page under Weakes, the text states, “signs of rapid
growth include growth of schools and undesirabletiment.” He felt this may be
phrased negatively, and there was a discussiornt aldoch word should be used. “Not in
line with township goals,” suggested by Ms. Clinesvagreed-upon by the BZC. Ms.
Kerlin remarked that the word “undesirable” is aywsubjective term.

Ms. Korleski asked whether the comments would bkided in the appendix as an
attachment, and the Commission said it would be.

Mr. Sedlacek asked that the Commission and audigkeethe time to read the
information and compare it with the original infaation, and it will be discussed at the
next meeting.

AGENDA ITEM: OTHER BUSINESS
Mr. Sedlacek said that he and Mr. Armstrong taliceHire Chief Bill Bechstein about
not losing sight of the fire department goals dgitine CLUP review ad update, and
asked Mr. Bechstein to document and review thedi@gartment goals. Chief Bechstein
distributed copies of the goals to the Commissiwh meeting attendees.

Chief Bechstein said that over the past 5 yeatsasevorked with developers and others
to improve the water main and fire protection systén the township. Most of it is
developer-driven, and Del-Co Water Company ranedyalls water mains. The township
has been successful in getting developers to comititythe fire department
requirements, and the department’s goals include:

Encourage the installation of new water main systand improvements to the existing
water main systems within the township for the pgmof increasing water volume for
fire protection and domestic water supply.

Increase the number of fire hydrants in areas whenrexisting water main will support
fire fighting operations.

Loop together new and existing water mains to predead end area£hief Bechstein
said that anything past the last item in a deadreaith is not usable because the water
only comes from one direction, so looping of thatimto another main is encouraged so
the water can be drawn from both directions. Delh@s been encouraged to construct
water towers and pumping stations to improve watessure.

To encourage the construction of water towers onging stations to improve areas of
low water pressureMr. Hahn asked if the township currently had algbem with low
water pressure. Chief Bechstein said that somesane supplied with very small 2-3”
mains and in an area near Big Run the water pressilower. Mr. Hahn asked if there
was a map which identifies this. Chief Bechstaiid $here is and that water comes from
another area; that area will have to be improvetddévelops further in order to increase
the water pressure. However, the fire departnssrit as concerned with pressure as it is
with volume and having a minimum 8” water main. . Mahn suggested changing the
fourth goal to indicate insufficient water volurnaghrer than low pressure. Chief
Bechstein said areas of low pressure should beased, which would increase the
volume.

To assist developers and encourage the construgitsafe, well-protected structures
within the township.Chief Bechstein said the township has always ewnkith
developers to encourage the building of safe strastwhich are well-protected.
Township fire inspectors work with companies ingtglnew buildings to ensure that
they meet the requirements of the fire code, andkwith the county code enforcement.

To evaluate development that may create a nedtiddire department to purchase
special vehicles and equipment or may heavily meeehe demand for service —
“Revenue vs. Risk."Chief Bechstein said that a developer may widbuitd a structure
which may require the purchase of special and esiperiire equipment in order to

Page 3 of 13



179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237

BERLIN ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
June 9, 2009, 7:00 PM

protect it, such as for multi-story buildings ofertain height, which would require the
purchase of an aerial truck. Thus, the revenusugerisk needs to be examined, and also
the cost to maintain the purchased equipment. tGlwaship needs to ensure that planned
buildings fit within the department’s current prctien capability.

Mr. Hahn said that developers frequently donatd Fan schools during the rezoning
process, and he said that perhaps a developer vghesvo build a structure which
requires the purchase of additional fire equipnoentdd donate the cost of part or all of it
to fire department. Chief Bechstein said thatlteen done to add specific fire
protection to a building by adding standpipes ontirtenvels, access through pressurized
stairwells, a pump to help increase pressure, Bbte township doesn’'t want to have to
subsidize developments; for example, a privateodinpould require a lot of equipment,
and so special needs if any are considered wheewigg a plan.

To require the installation of residential sprimkdgstems in all newly constructed multi-
family dwellings. Chief Bechstein said that these are requirecte lsprinkler systems
in their living areas per the new fire code.

To encourage the installation of residential sgarkin all newly-constructed single
family dwellings. Chief Bechstein said that many large homes iridivaship are
basically small commercial buildings in terms ofaiis necessary to fight fires. This
will assist the fire department in improving thengual of the residents, lowers insurance
rates, and are especially good for areas whichtdh@ve large mains.

Mr. Sedlacek asked if this should be required etef encouraged. Chief Bechstein
said that it is not required per the fire code,ibatirance rates are lower with them.

To encourage the installation of “dry hydrantsaimeas where there is not an adequate
supply of water for firefighting purpose£hief Bechstein said that the installation of dr
hydrants throughout the township is encouragedlaesk hydrants can use approved and
modified ponds to fight fires.

To increase the fire department staffing levelnovige on-duty firefighters 24 hours per
day, 7 days per weelChief Bechstein said this is a future goal f@ tine department
and it will be up to the citizens if they want it.

To incorporate into the zoning code the fire dapartt regulations which are not
included in the Ohio Fire Code but are alloweddaristituted by the “authority having
jurisdiction.” Chief Bechstein said that many areas have diffareeds, and he has the
authority to make that judgment. At a minimum si&te fire code must be followed.

Mr. Sedlacek said that the BZC always includes DBeézhstein in its consideration of
new developments, and he appreciated documengnigfibrmation for inclusion. He
asked for specifics for the final goal. Chief Bsiglin said that gated communities are a
problem for access by the fire department, and t(nddMike a requirement added to the
zoning resolution that the gate must have a siotinaied gate which in the event of a
power failure will automatically lock open, so ass&an be provided in the event of a
power failure. Mr. Sedlacek asked whether all Bpsccould be provided to the BZC or
Mr. Armstrong by next month, and Chief Bechsteiid $e could try. Mr. Hahn asked if
the fire department could review the zoning resofuto see where recommendations
would be appropriate.

Mr. Gemienhardt asked how much a ladder truck casis Chief Bechstein said it was
about $750,000.00. Mr. Gemienhardt asked if tlyehgidrants were needed more for
outlying FR-1 area or in planned subdivisions, mahyhich has aesthetic ponds. Chief
Bechstein said that it is inexpensive to instayl laydrants, and in areas with low water
pressure or situations such as water mains whiebeng worked on are useful. Mr.
Gemienhardt asked if dry hydrants could be a zoreagirement for new developments.

Page 4 of 13



238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297

BERLIN ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
June 9, 2009, 7:00 PM

Mr. Hahn said that developments on FR-1 parcelgshvare 1 acre or greater aren’t
approved by the BZC, and many gated communitiegily fall in that category. He
asked about changing the zoning resolution to redhat all subdivisions which are one
acre or less must be approved by the BZC for greatgtrol. Chief Bechstein said that
the siren-activated gates are preferred becaugenbik well. There was additional
discussion.

SUGGESTION OF PLAY AREA IN CHESHIRE AREA

Mr. Sedlacek said an email to the township fronidess Dave Armbruster was recently
received, which he read. The email expressedtteabnly playground at Alum Creek
State Park is located at the dam recreation ar@axange Township, and said the BZC
had discussed prior developing the Cheshire area asstoric and/or shopping area. He
suggested that a play area be built in that aregetss it would draw people to that area
and that would also benefit the businesses inatiest.

AGENDA ITEM: REVIEW/UPDATE OF
COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN (CLUP)

CHAPTER 7 HOUSING - REVIEW
Mr. Sanders said that this chapter will discuss howsing is divided out in the
township, and also general economic conditions.

Mr. Sanders said that in all these townships, exiteyse with much commercial
development such as Orange Township, housing teasthe primary index of growth,
and the township continues to change from a ruwadmounity with no central water or
sewer, mentioned in the existing CLUP, to a subnuidgal community with water service
throughout and the potential for sanitary seweviser Providing a range of housing in a
developing community is complex, and a lot of hagglans one may see in a
municipality may go into greater detail.

Mr. Sanders said that townships respond to theauogrand housing market. Some
zoning codes in rural areas can be overly restactiowever, Berlin and other townships
in Delaware County are not because the zoning gesvior a reasonable variety of
housing types, including single-family and multiidy without restrictive minimum
house sizes. This chapter indicates what the tojprcairrently has.

Existing Housing Stock

Mr. Sanders said that 10 years ago a house-to-vansishield survey was done which
ranked structures from 1-5 based on visible coowlitiHowever, this is a difficult

process and takes a long time, and it wasn’t delitet necessary at this time. Chapter 2
indicated a map which showed the year houses hexdliglt, so a generalized statement
that most houses built in the past 10 years aregily maintained and highly rated. 10
years ago, 92% of housing stock in Berlin Townshimked a 4 or 5

Mr. Sanders said that the information from the st office DALIS (Delaware
Appraisal Land Information System) program was comd with the housing stock
ratings to generate a map indicating home valuepareel, and this is different than the
last sales price. He noted that the township dbkaxe a housing value problem. The
groups of housing values were broken down, andokedrithat 37% of the houses fall
into the $225-300,000.00 range, and 16% in the $8@3400,000.00 range.

Mr. Sanders said that none of the townships in Da&ta County have a property
maintenance code, and the health district doeswé lone either. The township can’t
write its own property maintenance code, as it Wwayd beyond the zoning code to
ensure that the properties are maintained.

Mr. Sedlacek said that one of the most difficuitigtions for a zoning inspector is
working with other organizations like the healtbtdct to get a property cleaned up.
Frequently the person who owns the property dosg@ta problem. Mr. Sanders said a
model code which already exists would need to loptdl, and this is different from a

Page 5 of 13



298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357

BERLIN ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
June 9, 2009, 7:00 PM

zoning resolution where there is more latitudehm ¢hanges which have been made. Mr.
Sedlacek asked if a model does exist. Mr. Sarg#dsthat there is an international
model and an American model, and per some attoyifetix® county comes up with a
model, the townships can use that also.

Mr. Sedlacek asked if the statement “Berlin Towpstoes not have a housing condition
problem” is a general statement, as there are alemarent problems he is aware of. Mr.
Sanders said that was correct.

Housing Types
Mr. Sanders said that according to the DALIS buiddpoint data from June 2009, Berlin
Township has 1,853 single-family units and 244 rfalhily units.

Mr. Sanders said a table has been included in@e¢étB indicating housing types in the
township. The PRD areas south and north of Che§toad were split up because they
form two completely different areas. Also, the aseath of Cheshire Road is largely

built out. There are 810 units in the PRD subdivisouth of Cheshire, and just 49 units
north of Cheshire Road, for a total of 859 unitiere are 68 units in the R2 zoning
classification, and in subdivisions which are zofeth residential there are 91 lots and a
few small locations in the Dale Ford area, as aglb lots on 3Bs and K. There are a
total of about 739 homes located along originaets in the township.

Housing Needs

Berlin Township has been the fifth-largest providenew housing stock in the non-
municipal areas of Delaware County for the yea&71® 2008, ranked by building
permit issuance. This is 7% of the total new hogisn unincorporated Delaware County
in the last 21 years.

Mr. Sanders reviewed the table in 7.4 Top Housirayiéers in Delaware County. He
said that PRD districts have more housing unita theditional FR-1 units in FR-1
subdivision, and the highest percentage is inithglesfamily developments. He
reviewed the table and stated that from 1987-20(H,9 units have been constructed in
Berlin Township. Orange Township is at the topding provider for that time period
with 29%, Genoa Township is next with 27%, Libeftywnship has 17%, Concord
Township has 10%, and Berlin Township has 7%.

Mr. Sedlacek asked what the rationale was for ufiegange of 1987-2008 as a
reference point in the table. Mr. Sanders saiti¥B87 was as far back as the
information has been tracked. Mr. Sedlacek saitlttie information at the last original
CLUP meeting used data from 1980. Mr. Sandersteatdsome of these tables were
very long and so only the last 12 years are shown.

Land Application Developments

Mr. Sanders read language which had been updatedtfre last plan and which was
relevant to land application treatment systemss uilikely that any of these types of
system would be seen in Berlin Township becauskeopotential for county sewer
service. Developments such as Tartan Fields, brScioto Reserve and others are
on-site land application developments that the BR#ws and that the sanitary office has
to permit. This is a treatment system that, inktefasending waste into a pipe to the
treatment system and then back, it sprays the waténe golf course. He noted that all
of these systems except for Dornoch has been apgtoythe sanitary engineer, and
they are standalone sanitary sewer plants.

Mr. Sedlacek said that the table in Figure 7.5 Diguaents Proposed with Alternative
Centralized Sanitary Sewage Disposal did not irelBdnt Tree as it did in the original
plan, which had indicated that 1,500-3,000 unitsay@oposed, and also George Beaver
Farms on Curve and Berlin Station Roads. Mr. Samnaeked if North Star was included
on the list, and Mr. Sedlacek said it wasn't ineldan the updated list. There was
additional discussion. Mr. Sanders said thatigtericluded the most recent information,
and the column indicating Development Status inetlihether they were built or under

Page 6 of 13



358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417

BERLIN ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
June 9, 2009, 7:00 PM

construction. At the time the original list wagated, the units were proposed but never
were built.

Future Housing Needs

Mr. Sanders reviewed the future housing informa#od noted that the housing
distribution is affected by annexation; Ohio ann®xalaws favor cities and make it easy
to annex as long as the land owner wants it. Zphattles often occur on the boundaries
of cities over the issue of housing. The townstepds to determine what it would like to
look like when it is all built out and what servicihe township and county can
reasonably provide, as well as what is a fair sbatbat mix. The township can’t

directly compete with a neighboring city but it aaake annexation away from the
township less attractive.

Housing Policies

Mr. Sanders said that Berlin Township has estaptisjoals to maintain a diversity of
housing types and should continually evaluateotssing mix as new developments are
proposed. As developing communities begin shdaadership in county housing share
they must also share the diversity of housing tygessed.

Mr. Sanders said that the City of Columbus hasathkty to annex property as far as
Powell Road as part of an agreement with Delawaan€y, which serves the Polaris
area. Much of what has been annexed has highaitgemgle-family or multi-family
development than the townships, and that is whytbperty is annexed. Also the City
of Delaware has a high-density apartment distrlativ could eventually compete with
Columbus. Related to the Grady Hospital propextyhé Stavroff property, and it is not
certain if that property will be multi-family or camercial as the City of Delaware has
allowed a flexible development plan.

Mr. Sanders said that townships can’t competeerréimge of urban services cities can
provide although they can try to. He hears freqjyehat single-family development is
good and multi-family development is bad; howeteeye are different types of multi-
family development which are different in severalys, including relating the units to
adjacent development. It is important to be opedlifferent housing types to a limited
degree, such as a small area of multi-family dgwelent as part of a larger single-family
development. In a future chapter he will includeng best-use practices which indicate
different styles of housing and how to ensure &-ggality product is obtained. There
are some examples of multi-family development whaich not high-quality, and that can
set a general tone for multi-family units which &rpically opposed.

CHAPTER 8 GENERAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS - REVIEW

Mr. Sanders said that in all prior CLUPs in themiguthe first few paragraphs of this
chapter have been very optimistic, while this diradtudes information about the current
state, national, and global downturn. The gersrahomic conditions of the country,
state, or region will impact how slow or fast demhent proceeds, and it does not
necessarily inform the decisions made in a commrgiie plan. However, it is important
to include this information in the CLUP so futueaders of the plan can see the
economic outlook present when this plan was revisé¢el has included positives in the
plan as well.

Global Economy

Mr. Sanders said the current and revised CLUP dedwa quote which stated that the
global economy faces challenges from a 20-montlglalidal currency crisis, and how
this has affected everyone else.

The United States Economy in General

Mr. Sanders said that Ohio was named first in @iteon for major business expansions in
2008 by Site Selection magazine; however, thelarsilso stated that wouldn’t
necessarily result in a lot of jobs but would irage business starts. It indicated Ohio’s
503 projects, more than Texas at 497 and Michig@9@. It was predicted by
forbes.com and moodys.com that Columbus will bt@snhation’s 8 fastest home sales

Page 7 of 13



418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477

BERLIN ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
June 9, 2009, 7:00 PM

rate in 2008, and that home prices here will ineee249%. This past March,
Forbes.com also named Columbus the “Number 1 UpGanding Tech City.”

Mr. Sanders said that a recent “Stress Test” rdpotihe Associated Press ranked all
counties in the country and how they compared ¢h ether in unemployment,
foreclosures, and bankruptcy, and Delaware Coumtyecin third in the state after
Holmes and Geauga counties. Columbus is the natileind most stable housing market
in regards to the strength of its economy, plangémstruction, low foreclosure rates,
local credit markets, home sales rates, and tloedability and availability of housing.

Mr. Sanders said that the Median Household Incamé&e Columbus metro area is
$44,782.00, which is ranked B hationally. For comparison, San Francisco was in
this list at $63,027.00. Median Household IncomBeélaware County is Ohio’s highest
at $79,173.00; Fairfield County is next at $55,003and Licking County is next at
$50,386.00.

The Local Economy
While several economic indicators are worse thantiame in recent history, the local
economy has fared well.

Employment
Mr. Sanders said that Delaware County is fortut@ateave a broad-based economy

and does not rely on one large plant which empéolgsge percentage of the
population, although many people who live here mayk in another county or in
Columbus.

Mr. Sanders reviewed the table in Figure 8.1 Eshirients, Employment, and Wages
by Sector, Delaware County 2006. He said that gguwdducing companies have
about 9,190 employees, and services have 48,00gaes. Mr. Hahn asked
whether the Average Employment should be labeldgdl Employment. Mr. Sanders
said it is annual average employment but he wasmé how far back it went. Mr.
Hahn said that the Number of Establishments andageeEmployment could be read
a different way and he suggested modifying theltateemake the information more
clear. Mr. Sanders said he would check on this.

Mr. Sanders said that from 2001 to 2006 all sea®cept mining increased in the
number of establishments and the number of empdoy&he largest increase was in
the Information sector at 75% establishment and&6mployment, Professional and
Business Services at 79/154%, and Leisure and tdispat 75/117%. Mr. Hahn
asked whether the lists included retail. Mr. Sasdaid that was included in the
Trade, Transportation, and Utilities portion. Tervice-Producing sector saw a 93%
increase in employee growth, he said, and Locale@owuent saw a 62% growth in
employees.

Mr. Sanders referenced Figure 8.2 indicating tipe2® employees in Delaware
County, and said that the number one employer laviz@e County is JP Morgan
Chase at 7,601 employees, the number two emplsy@lentangy Local Schools at
1,564, and Delaware County is 1,082. The Kroganestemploy 829 and the
distribution center 791; American Showa 709, OhiesWyan 612, Wal-Mart 595,
Grady Hospital 577, and Delaware City Schools 538.

Unemployment Rate

Mr. Sanders said the unemployment rate continugs tap, but Delaware County has
the lowest unemployment rate in Ohio at 6.6% inilApompared to 10.2% in Ohio.
Mr. Hahn suggested adding the year to this infoionat

Poverty Rate
Mr. Sanders said that Delaware County’s poverty ra2007 was 4.5%, compared to

Franklin County at 16%.

Page 8 of 13



478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537

BERLIN ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
June 9, 2009, 7:00 PM

Educational Attainment Rate

Mr. Sanders said that in 2007 Delaware County hadighest educational attainment
rate of any central Ohio county. Of the populatbmer 25 years of age, 95.8% are
high school graduates, 17% have graduate or piofedslegrees. 49.2% have
bachelor’s degrees, compared to 35.3% in Frankbungy.

Columbus MSA Housing Mar ket

Mr. Sanders said the housing market compared tMite/est region is healthy, and
although housing sales continue to slump and nawihg starts are slow, the BIA
indicated that the number of sold listings in AR@09 rose 10% over March with a
4% increase in sold price, and the average pricetiahighest since 2008.

Berlin Township Economy

Mr. Sanders said some of the information in thedsimeld survey may differ from the
information included on the Delaware County Audgavebsite or the township’s zoning
maps.

Polaris

Mr. Sanders said that the Polaris area was anrfexedOrange Township to the City
of Columbus in 1991, and this impacts both thatsimp and also Berlin Township,
so information is included regarding Polaris. Attee Polaris I-71 interchange and
Polaris Parkway were built many new jobs were bnvtig Delaware County.

Mr. Sanders said this section indicates developrmethie Polaris area, including
Polaris Towne Center which is 115,000 SF, andMd?gan-Chase which occupies 2
million SF of Class A office space. A full servieliton and conference center has
opened, smaller office, medical and warehouse giopre 132,000 SF, and the
development of this area has spawned spin-off @aandevelopment on the east side
in Westerville. Mr. Hahn pointed out that the pagmorrectly refers to the “Polaris
Shopping Plan.”

Mr. Sanders said the key to the early developmeRbtaris was the new I-71
interchange and roads built connecting east/weasnharth/south traffic. He said it is a
misconception that the Gemini Parkway interchange added to fix mistakes in the
first interchange; however, the later constructiark was part of the original plan for
the area but was delayed due to funding chang&ohymbus.

Mr. Sanders said the Polaris Amphitheatre operateseveral years prior to closing
in 2007 and he hasn't heard of future plans for pnaperty. This facility was
mentioned as being successful in the original CLUP.

Rates of Taxation and Revenues

Mr. Sanders said that information from the coundasurer and auditor offices was used
to provide the information in this section. Berliownship’s residential property as of
tax year 2008 is valued at $205,015,750.00, whudtith after Genoa ($897,000,000),
Orange, Liberty, and Concord townships. Berlin fiship’s commercial, industrial, and
utility has a value of about $14,067,000.00, atsffih place, with Orange Township
first at $176 million. With farm uses, utilitiespé personal tangible value the total
valuation of the township is $227,326,613.00, whichbout 5.4% of the total county
valuation of $4,237,917,961.00.

Mr. Hahn said this indicates that about 8% of prgpealues in Berlin Township are
commercial, which is not good for the residents’riates.

Mr. Sanders said the county treasurer maintairgt aflall mills levied on each dollar of
property within the county, and individual taxes Based on the rate multiplied by the

property valuation of each property. Berlin Towmsséitax rate includes .04 mills for the
library, 6.3 mills for the county, 5.78 for the toghip, 70.72 for Olentangy Local

Page 9 of 13



538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597

BERLIN ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
June 9, 2009, 7:00 PM

Schools, 3.2 mills for JVS, for a total of 86.04Imiwith an effective rate of 58.34 for
residential and 58.16 for commercial and industrial

Mr. Sanders said that townships receive a portidhescommercial and industrial taxes
collected by the county, and this varies basedersthool district and township. He
reviewed examples in Concord , Orange, and Genwadlups. The Meijer of Route 23
paid a total of $196,373.00 in real estate taxeBR and Orange Township received
about $43,200.00 of that amount. This may seent siooé several commercial
developments can reduce residential property ovaxes.

Economic Development Tools and the Township

Mr. Sanders said that he tried to collect inforimatbout economic development for the
CLUP update; however, the township doesn’t necégshr economic development on
its own; it occurs instead at the county and ecaadevel. Given the opportunity and
the need, businesses who contact the townshipegutiate with the township trustees.
He noted that a new Economic Development Direciss Gomstock has been hired and
so far he has been working on the right stakehsltbgrether to come up with a strategic
plan to attract businesses to the area, and himt¢laded information on tools which can
be used.

Enterprise Zones

Mr. Sanders said these are targeted areas whemanmic development team
will try to attract business by abating taxes faeaain amount of time in
exchange for the business meeting certain benclsnaautk employment goals.
Enterprise Zones have proven to be engines of ¢raamd he noted that an
enterprise zone is located in Orange Township f&ranahan Road to the south.
Some businesses have completed their abatemermisgas; while others are still
in the process.

Broadband Fiber

Mr. Sanders has been to several recent meetingewneadband Fiber is
discussed as an important utility and a very imgoarform of infrastructure.
However, there are places in townships which havsuth coverage. There are
current efforts underway to achieve a higher l@féiber infrastructure. The
Delaware Area Super Highway (DASH) is a group dbimation Technology
people around Delaware who are trying to get conegaconnected to the higher
capacity lines, including the school districts. offmer organization called Central
Ohio Broadband (COBB) includes involvement by basses and governmental
agencies in Dublin, Westerville, Delaware City &elaware county attempting
to get these areas connected.

Mr. Sanders said that Connect Ohio is a statewffdet @imed at determining
where service does not exist or is ineffective, @hdt projects can be initiated to
improve service. There hasn’t been a great turfosuhis group yet, he noted.
The concept is that a group of stakeholders amesepted and they begin with
provider map which indicates that an area has taad coverage, but it actually
does not in some places. The next step will ksttact as many people as
possible to the meeting to identify these aredse Tonnect Ohio plan may lead
to specific projects which will improve servicedartain areas. This is beneficial
because some businesses will reject locating ertaio area because adequate
internet capacity is not available.

Port Authority
Mr. Sanders said the Port Authority is a politisabdivision created by Ohio law

and is for the purpose of economic developmenertzancing and promoting
transportation, economic development, housinggeimns, research, and other
issues. This entity can accomplish much moreenithy of economic
development in a competitive fashion than a govemtrentity which is limited
by disclosure requirements.

Page 10 of 13



598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656

BERLIN ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
June 9, 2009, 7:00 PM

Community Reinvestment Areas

Mr. Sanders said that a Community Reinvestment fC&®A) are designated
areas where tax abatements are allowable on pydpgstovements made as a
result of an expansion of relocation project. Ehsronly one CRA in the county,
located in the City of Delaware.

Mr. Armstrong said there are actually two additic@RAs located in Berlin
Township; one is P & D Builders on Greif Parkwayldhe other is Piranha Grill
in Cheshire, and this should be indicated in thaatgd information. He will
provide to Mr. Sanders additional information ors thnd also TIFs and TIRCs in
the township. Mr. Sanders said that the DCRPC tsedovide maps to the
Economic Development department, typically indiegthew borders. He said
that retail in not typically applicable to a CRMr. Armstrong agreed and
reviewed the requirements, including job creation.

Mr. Sanders said that through the CLUP processisbips which are resistant to
any type of business development or commercial trare frequently convinced
that their income needs to come from a varietyoofees, including business and
commercial growth. Then, a tax abatement is agaov

Tax Increment Financing (TIF)

Mr. Sanders said a TIF is a program to financeipubfrastructure by redirecting
new real personal property tax to a debt retirerherd. This is a way for a
development to pay for itself when that developrmexteeds what would
reasonably be expected to be installed by it fivagtructure. Instead of passing
along the upfront costs for these improvementstimocost of the lots, they can
be carried over into several years so that thenkesses who move in there will
pay that off over time. A portion of the real pesty tax on improvements to a
tie, up to 75% for 10 years, can be paid into aigphéund and the taxes will then
be diverted to that specific project, instead ahganto the general tax fund.
Thus, this is not an abatement but redirectiorunflé. A county negotiating
committee first meets with the potential businesdiscuss whether the TIF
program can be utilized with the proposed project.

Mr. Sanders said that in Orange Township thereg®gig IF for the Olentangy
Crossings development, which has led to the dewvedop including a Kroger
store, a National City Bank, and an OSU Medicalilitgcwhich represents
$1,766,160.00 in property value (2008 figure).

Mr. Sanders asked if there was a TIF for the GPaikway project. Mr.
Armstrong said there was and there is also oneit/@dazp/CitiGroup.

Ohio Job Creation Tax Credit

Mr. Sanders said that the Ohio Job Creation TaxiCigea program which allows
a business to receive a tax credit or a refundhagaf up to 75% for up to 10
years of the corporate franchising tax based upemtimber of new jobs created
with the project. At least 25 new, full-time jobmust be created within 3 years of
the project beginning who are paid at least 150%h@federal minimum wage.

Effect on Growth and the Community Vision
Mr. Sanders said that this is typically similathe end result of the prior plan, and

indicates that the unemployment and poverty rat&3elaware County are comparatively

low compared to the economy. The only negativénprior plan was that

unemployment was perhaps too low and businesselsiwbwant to locate in an area

where they couldn’t find an accessible job market.

Mr. Sanders said that may not be the situation mawpther reasons can prevent
businesses from relocating and starting over sa¢hefollowing:

Page 11 of 13



657
658
659

569

662
663
664
665
666

664

669
670
671
672
673

578

676
677
678

840

681
682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689
690
691
692
693
694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718

BERLIN ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
June 9, 2009, 7:00 PM

A. When too much housing created in advance of arsnfjelemand curve and low
unemployment rate, a glut of housing product caldlup. However, this area
hasn't been referred to as part of a “boom-bustleyalthough housing prices are
lower and sales have slowed.

B. The previously-reviewed housing pipeline numbeggest that a glut of supply
existed when the economy and credit issues becooidematic. Information in
Chapter 3 of the CLUP indicates that using theemirb-year average lot
absorption rate, it would take about 9 years twdbsverything already in the
works, including property which has been zonedngtsubdivision; typically a
3-5 year supply is considered healthy.

C. The Delaware County housing market remains strotinger the Central Ohio
housing market. Recent census information indgctitat the United States, Ohio,
and Central Ohio continue to grow slightly, whilelBware County has grown
significantly and market demand is increasing sigamtly. Part of this is a
population shift away from Franklin County, andréfer, market demand is
increasing.

D. The Vision for Berlin Township’s Comprehensive P&ppears to be
economically available in the long term, assumhmeglocal, state, and national
economy continue to improve. Mr. Sedlacek suggestanging the word
“economy” to “economies.”

E. Phasing of large projects should be encouragedhedas the incremental
absorption of the land costs to the developer andla oversupply of product.
Mr. Sanders said this language has been slightipgéd because it was
recommended that it may be problematic to statetiigearea should not be over-
zoned. This is different than not approving cerening projects simply
because the township is growing too fast. Mr. Hasked if the township could
legally even take that stand. Mr. Sanders saidishahy he removed the prior
statement “Avoid over-zoning.”

Mr. Sedlacek asked why some of the headings imetfised text were blue, while others
were black. Mr. Sanders said that the black pnidicated a heading, and the blue
indicated a subheading; he will work on this to mé#hke information more clear.

Mr. Hahn asked what the “metropolitan statisticgalad cited on page 59 refers. Mr.
Sanders said this is what the census calls the&@r€alumbus area. Mr. Sedlacek asked
that an explanation of this be included in the.text

Ms. Kerlin said that regarding the tax revenue ftarge businesses, Berlin Township
may not have any businesses which seem as lathe &ange Township sectors, but it
would be nice to also see something from Berlin figlwp cited in this part of the CLUP.

Mr. Gemienhardt asked if the Ohio Revised Code fisrownships to establish port
authorities. Mr. Sanders said it allows countedd so and townships probably do not
have that authority.

Mr. Sanders said that Chapter 9 TransportationRatls, and Chapter 10 Utilities,
would be discussed at the next meeting. The datéhé sanitary sewer lines is in the
process of being updated. Mr. Sedlacek noteda#tat time, the BZC would have
reviewed revised Chapter 4 of the CLUP as well.

Mr. Armstrong said that he spoke with Chad Antleebtor of Environmental Services
with the Delaware County Regional Sewer Distribpuat this about two weeks ago and
he was told that the mapping project for the cursemver lines is to be finished around
July of this year. However, he was not sure if theluded GIS data or involved just
collecting data. Mr. Sanders added that thereuaas in the county which probably
won't ever be served because houses are builatodofvn. For example, there is an area
with a drop-off on the north side of Home Road vatktream. He will check with
Mr.Antle regarding the different zones and sendeas based on pump stations, etc.

Page 12 of 13



719
720
721
722
723
724
725
726
727
728
729
730
731
732
733
734
735
736
737
738
739
740
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751
752
753
754
755
756
757
758
759
760
761
762

BERLIN ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
June 9, 2009, 7:00 PM

AGENDA ITEM: COMMENTSFROM THE ZONING INSPECTOR

Mr. Armstrong had no specific comments at this time

Mr. Sedlacek said he was aware that the reviewmwiesof the CLUP chapters can be
dry, but they must be reviewed and he apprecidteattendance by the public.

There was a discussion about the next BZC meedimdjjt was changed from 7/14/09 to
7/21/09 at 7:00 PM.

SYNOPSIS

ACCOMPLISHED
» Chapters 7 Housing and 8 General Economic Conditbdithe CLUP were reviewed.

FUTURE WORK

» Work will continue on the various BZC sub-commitiee

> At the next BZC meeting on 7/21/09 at 7:00 PM, Glep9 Transportation and
Roads and 10 Utilities will be reviewed.

The next BZC meeting will be on Tuesday July 2102at 7:00 PM at the Berlin
Township Hall.

There was no further business to come before tmen@ssion. Motion to adjourn.
Meeting adjourned at 9:20 PM.

Rick Sedlacek, Chairman

Jerry Valentine, Vice-Chairman

Jim Hahn, member

Rae Ann Kerlin, member

Toni Korleski, second alternate (seated)

Attest:
Lisa F. Knapp, Berlin Township Zoni@terk

Page 13 of 13



